
 
 

 
eastsussex.gov.uk 

LEAD MEMBER FOR RESOURCES 
 
DECISIONS   to be made by the Lead Cabinet Member for Resources 
Councillor David Elkin 
 
TUESDAY, 24 NOVEMBER 2015 AT 10.00 AM  
 
CC1, COUNTY HALL, LEWES 
 
AGENDA 
 
1   Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 20 October 2015  (Pages 3 - 4) 

 
2   Disclosure of Interests   

Disclosure by all Members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct  
 

3   Urgent items   
Notification of any items which the Lead Member considers urgent and proposes to take 
at the appropriate part of the agenda.  
 

4   Notice of Motion:  Opposition to the Trade Union Bill ('the Bill')  (Pages 5 - 8) 
Report by the Chief Operating Officer 
 

5   Mount Denys and Pinehill. The Ridge, Hastings  (Pages 9 - 12) 
Report by the Chief Operating Officer  
 

6   Acquisition and disposal of land at Sandrock Hall Bends, The Ridge, Hastings  (Pages 
13 - 16) 
Report by the Chief Operating Officer  
 

7   1 Garfield Road, Hailsham  (Pages 17 - 18) 
Report by the Chief Operating Officer  
 

8   Any urgent items previously notified under agenda item 3   
 

 
 
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Assistant Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent 
LEWES BN7 1UE 16 November 2015 
 
Contact Simon Bailey, Democratic Services Officer,  
01273 481935 
Email: simon.bailey@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 

LEAD MEMBER FOR RESOURCES 
 
DECISIONS made by the Lead Member for Resources, Councillor David Elkin, on 20 October 
2015 at County Hall, Lewes  
 

 
Councillor Pursglove spoke on item 4 (see minute 20) 
 
 
 
18 DECISIONS MADE BY THE LEAD CABINET MEMBER ON 24 SEPTEMBER 2015  
 
18.1 The Lead Member approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 24 
September 2015.   
 
 
19 REPORTS  
 
19.1 Reports referred to in the minutes below are contained in the minute book. 
 
 
20 HOMEFIELD PLACE, HOMEFIELD ROAD, SEAFORD BN25 3DG  
 
20.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Chief Operating Officer.  
 
DECISIONS  
 
20.2 RESOLVED to (1) declare the land and buildings comprising the former Adult Social 
Care residential home, Homefield Place, surplus to the County Council’s requirements; and  
 
(2) delegate authority to the Chief Operating Officer to negotiate and agree terms for the sale of 
the property, to enable the Council to obtain best value in line with s123 of the Local 
Government Act 1972.  
 
Reasons  
 
20.3 The Council has no further use for the land and buildings.  Declaring the land and 
building surplus will enable the Chief Operating Officer to develop options for the disposal of the 
property to contribute towards the funding of the Council’s Capital Programme.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Report to: 
 

Lead Member for Resources 

Date: 
 

24 November 2015 

By: 
 

Chief Operating Officer 

Title of report: 
 

Notice of Motion: Opposition to the Trade Union Bill (‘the Bill’) 

Purpose of report: 
 

To consider the Notice of Motion by Councillor Webb and Councillor Charman 
regarding the proposal that the Council opposes the Trade Union Bill   
 

 

RECOMMENDATION: The Lead Member is recommended to recommend that the County Council 
note the contents of this report and adopts an amended Notice of Motion as set out in paragraph 
3.1 of the report.   
 
 

 

1 Background Information 
 

1.1 The following Notice of Motion has been submitted by Councillor Webb and Councillor Charman: 
 

“As a major employer in the area, this Council welcomes the positive benefits that arise from the 
relationship that we have with recognised trade unions, and seeks to encourage trade union 
membership in its own workforce, as well as promoting the benefits of trade union membership in 
the county as a whole. However, the County Council notes that the Trade Union Bill 2015 and 
associated secondary legislation, if enacted, would: 
 

• Allow agency labour to be used to substitute for striking workers (currently outlawed); 
• Introduce very high thresholds for industrial ballots, with an extra threshold in certain public 
services, without doing anything to improve the ability of workers to participate in ballots; 
• Severely restrict the right to picket and peacefully protest, including organising campaigns through 
social media; 
• Potentially reduce trade union facility time and withdraw check off union contributions in the council 
and other employers in East Sussex; 
• Require union members to ‘contract in’ to their union’s Political Fund every 5 years. 
 

This Council believes that the relationship between employers and their employees in East Sussex 
through their collective representatives would be damaged by the above proposals and calls on the 
Government to scrap the Trade Union Bill and all associated secondary legislation. 
 

We request that the Leader of the Council writes to the Secretary of State for Business, Innovation 
and Skills stating the Council’s opposition to the Bill and requesting that Government scrap the 
proposed legislation.” 
 

1.2 In line with the Council’s practice the matter has been referred by the Chairman to the Lead Cabinet 
Member for Resources for consideration to assist and provide information to the County Council and help 
inform the debate. The Lead Member’s decision will be reported to the County Council at its next meeting 
on 1 December 2015.  
 

1.3 The Bill was announced during the Queen’s Speech on 27 May 2015, described as “legislation to 
reform trade unions and to protect essential public services against strikes”. The announcement followed 
commitments in the Conservative Party manifesto 2015, which set out many of the proposals which feature 
in the Bill.   
 

2. Supporting Information 
 

Summary of the Bill 
 

2.1 A summary of the Bill is set out in Appendix A. 
 

2.2  The Trade Union Bill includes new restrictions on the right to strike, with the introduction of a 50% 
voting threshold for union ballot turnouts and a new requirement that 40% of those entitled to vote must 
vote in favour of industrial action in certain essential public services including fire, education, health and 
transport. Currently a strike is valid if it achieves a majority of those voting. Whilst the definition of essential 
public services will be the subject of a separate consultation, it is likely to include some services within the 
County Council such as parts of Adult Social Care and Children’s Services.  

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 
 
2.3 Alongside the Bill, the Department for Business, Innovation and Skills (BIS) is also consulting on 
measures which do not currently feature in the Bill that may be achieved by secondary legislation using 
powers from the Bill:  
 

 • repealing the existing prohibition on hiring agency staff to replace workers participating in industrial 
 action; and  
 • changes to the law on picketing, including the possible creation of a new criminal offence of 
 “intimidation on the picket line”.  
 

2.4 In addition to the Bill’s current provisions, the Government has indicated it intends to amend the Bill 
to abolish check-off in the public sector. Check-off is a system whereby union membership payments are 
deducted from union members’ salaries by their employers and paid over to unions. 
 

Passage of the Bill through Parliament 
 
2.5 The Bill has passed through all the House of Commons Stages and is now in the House of Lords 
Stages. The first reading in the House of Lords took place on 11 November 2015. The second reading, 
which will give the opportunity for a general debate on all aspects of the Bill, is yet to be scheduled.   
 

2.6 There are a number of organisations in both the public and private sector that either support or 
object to the Bill. A number of written submissions from these outside bodies and individuals have been 
circulated to MPs appointed to examine the Bill during the committee stage in a Public Bill Committee. 
Written submissions have been made from organisations including Unison, GMB, NUT and the Taxpayers’ 
Alliance. Details of these can be found via the links at the bottom of this report. 
 

Local Context 
 

2.7 To date, the County Council has enjoyed a positive relationship with local trades unions which has 
resulted in the effective management of a number of large scale change programmes such as whole 
service restructures, the implementation of the local East Sussex Single Status pay and grading 
arrangements, as well as changes to contractual terms and conditions. Putting aside the impact from 
national related industrial action, such as annual pay awards negotiated nationally, over the course of the 
last 18 months, minimal reference to industrial action has been made by the unions in East Sussex.  
 

3. Conclusion and Reasons for Recommendations 
 

3.1 Set against the above background and recognising our responsibilities as an employer of a large, 
complex, people based organisation, it is suggested that the original notice of motion should be amended 
as follows: 
“As a major employer in the area, this Council welcomes the positive benefits that arise from the 
relationship that we have with recognised trade unions, and seeks to encourage trade union membership in 
its own workforce, as well as promoting the benefits of trade union membership in the county as a whole.  
 
This Council believes that the relationship between employers and their employees in East Sussex through 
their collective representatives would be damaged by the proposals and calls on the Government to scrap 
the Trade Union Bill and all associated secondary legislation. 

 
We request that the Leader of the Council writes to the Secretary of State for Business, Innovation and 
Skills stating the Council’s opposition to the Bill and requesting that Government scrap the proposed 
legislation.” 
 
KEVIN FOSTER 
Chief Operating Officer  
 
Contact Officer:  Sarah Mainwaring Tel No. 01273 482060 
Local Members:  All 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
(i) The Trade Union Bill (http://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/bills/cbill/2015-2016/0058/16058.pdf) 
(ii) Written submissions from outside bodies (http://services.parliament.uk/bills/2015-
16/tradeunion/documents.html) 
(iii) House of Commons briefing paper (http://researchbriefings.files.parliament.uk/documents/CBP-
7295/CBP-7295.pdf) 

 

Page 6

http://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/bills/cbill/2015-2016/0058/16058.pdf
http://services.parliament.uk/bills/2015-16/tradeunion/documents.html
http://services.parliament.uk/bills/2015-16/tradeunion/documents.html
http://researchbriefings.files.parliament.uk/documents/CBP-7295/CBP-7295.pdf
http://researchbriefings.files.parliament.uk/documents/CBP-7295/CBP-7295.pdf


Appendix 1 
 

Summary of the Bill1  

 
The main provisions of the Bill are as follows: 
 
Clause 1 defines the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation Act 1992 as “the 1992 Act”.  The 
Bill would amend this Act. 
 
Clause 2 would introduce a 50 per cent turnout requirement for industrial action ballots, in addition to the 
current requirement for a majority vote in favour of action. 
 
Under clause 3, industrial action in “important public services” would require a positive vote by at least 40 
per cent of those entitled to vote in the ballot.  This would be in addition to the 50 per cent turnout threshold 
and the requirement for a majority vote.  “Important public services” would be defined in subsequent 
regulations, but could fall only within the following categories: 
 

 health services; 
 education of those aged under 17; 
 fire services; 
 transport services;  
 decommissioning of nuclear installations and management of radioactive waste and spent fuel; or 

border security. 
 
Clause 4-6 would require unions to include new types of information on industrial action ballots.  Following 
a ballot, unions would have to communicate more detailed information to union members, employers and 
the Certification Officer. 
 
Clause 7 would extend the period of notice unions must give employers prior to industrial action, from the 
current seven days to 14 days.  
 
Clause 8 of the Bill would provide that industrial action ballot mandates would expire after a four-month 
period; industrial action after this point would require a fresh ballot. 
 
Clause 9 would introduce new legal requirements relating to the supervision of picketing.  The 
requirements would include, for example, that a picket supervisor must take reasonable steps to 
communicate information to the police.  The clause would incorporate into law provisions of the 1992 Code 
of Practice on Picketing. 
 
Clause 10 would make it unlawful to require a member of a union to contribute to a political fund unless he 
has indicated in writing willingness to do so.  This would change political fund contributions from an opt-out 
to an opt-in arrangement.  The opt-in agreement would expire after five years, subject to the possibility of 
renewal.  Clause 11 would require unions to publish details of political expenditure in their annual returns if 
this expenditure exceeds £2,000 per annum.  The annual return must detail the amount spent on political 
objects and the recipient(s) of each item of expenditure. 
 
Clause 12 would introduce a power, whereby a Minister may by regulations require a relevant public sector 
employer to publish information relating to facility time taken by union officials.   
 
Clause 13 would create a reserve power whereby a Minister may make regulations restrict facility time. 
 
Clauses 14-17 and Schedules 1-3 would reform the role of the Certification Officer.  They would introduce 
investigatory and enforcement powers; the power to impose financial penalties of between £200 and 
£20,000; and the power to, by regulations, make provision for the Certification Officer to require trade 
unions and employers’ associations to pay a levy, funding the performance of his role. 
 
 
 

                                            
1
 http://researchbriefings.parliament.uk/ResearchBriefing/Summary/CBP-7295 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Report to:  Lead Member for Resources    
 
Date:   24 November 2015 
 
By:   Chief Operating Officer    
 
Title of report:  Mount Denys and Pinehill, The Ridge, Hastings  
 
Purpose of report: To seek Lead Member approval to declare this property 

surplus to County Council requirements 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
The Lead Member is recommended to: 
 

1)  declare the land and buildings comprising the former Adult Social Care 
residential homes, Mount Denys and Pinehill, surplus to the County 
Council operational requirements; and  

 
2) delegate authority to the Chief Operating Officer to negotiate and agree 

terms for these properties, to enable the Council to obtain best value in line 
with s. 123 of the Local Government Act 1972. 

___________________________________________________________________ 

 

1 Background 

1.1 Declaring the land and buildings surplus to the Council’s requirements will enable 
the Chief Operating Officer to develop options for the property.   

1.2 The sale of the site will generate a small revenue saving through the reduction of 
future maintenance and running costs. 

1.3 The properties are currently vacant. A third property, Ridgeway, sits on this site 
and will remain in operational use for the time being. External surveyors have confirmed 
there is no loss of marriage value as a result of the third property remaining in use, given 
the topography and site layout. 

 

2 Supporting information 

2.1 The site is shown hatched black on the attached plan (Appendix 1) and 
comprises approximately 1.1 acres. 

2.2 We have undertaken all standard internal consultations which have confirmed 
there is no requirement to retain these properties.  

2.3  Any disposal of this site will be subject to achieving best value in accordance with 
s.123 of the Local Government Act 1972.  

2.4 The Local Member has been notified of our recommendations and has raised no 
objections. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



 

3. Conclusion and reasons for recommendations  

3.1   The Council has no further use for the land and buildings.  

3.2 It is recommended that this property be declared surplus to County Council 
requirements and delegated authority be given to the Chief Operating Officer to 
negotiate and agree terms for these properties, to enable the Council to obtain best 
value in line with s. 123 of the Local Government Act 1972. 

 

 

KEVIN FOSTER    
Chief Operating Officer     

Contact Officer: Christopher Reed MRICS 
Tel. No. 01273 336 237 
Email: chris.reed@eastsussex.gov.uk 

 

LOCAL MEMBERS 

Councillor Michael Wincott 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

None 

 

 

Page 10



Map Title: Mnt Denys and Pinehill, The Ridge, Hastings

1:1,250Scale:

Date: Map No:<Enter date> <Enter map number>

<Enter author>Author:

East Sussex County Council
County Hall
St Annes Crescent
Lewes

BairdHastingsHastings
Baird and OreEast Sussex County

9572

9618

9586

9593

9556

9301

9603

9493

9505

9505

9485

9505

´

Aerial Photography © Getmapping.com 2011.
© East Sussex County Council 2011.

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the
permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her 
Majesty’s Stationary Office © Crown copyright. Unauthorised 
reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution
or civil proceedings. 100019601. 2011.

Page 11

Appendix A



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Report to:  Lead Member for Resources    
 
Date:   24 November 2015 
 
By:   Chief Operating Officer    
 
Title of report: Acquisition and disposal of land at Sandrock Hall Bends, The Ridge, Hastings 
 
Purpose of report: To seek approval for the acquisition and disposal of land at Sandrock Hall 

Bends, The Ridge, Hastings  
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

1) Approval to acquire the freehold of land at Sandrock Hall Bends, The Ridge Hastings in 
accordance with the S 52 agreement dated 1 August 1986; 

2) Declare the property surplus to Council operational requirements; and 

3)  Delegate to the Chief Operating Officer negotiation of final terms and conditions in line with 
Sections 120 and 123 of the Local Government Act 1972. 

 

1. Background 

1.1 Clause 2 of a Section 52 Agreement signed 1 August 1986 between Tangofield Limited (land 
owner), Hastings Borough Council and the County Council stated that the land shown edged red on the 
plan (Appendix 1) would be transferred to the County Council at nil consideration to enable the construction 
of a road scheme.  The transfer did not take place.  The road scheme was rescinded by the Transport and 
Environment Committee on 30 September 1997 and is no longer going ahead. 
 
1.2 The landowner has gone into liquidation and the land passed to the Treasury Solicitors Department 
(TSoL).  The TSoL have agreed that they will be bound by the terms of the Section 52 agreement and are 
happy to transfer the ownership of land to ESCC. 
 

2. Supporting information 

2.1 Acquisition of the land from TSol will be under a vesting order to be applied for under Section 1021 
of the Companies Act 2006/Section 44 of the Trustee Act 1925.   

2.2 Any disposal of the land would be for a minimum net capital receipt of £19,000. 

2.3  The land edged red should have been transferred to the County Council.  We recommend that the 
transaction is now completed to remedy that omission. Hastings Borough Council wish to acquire the land 
and we are seeking approval to dispose of the same land on completion of the acquisition.   

2.4 Internal consultation has confirmed that there is no ESCC operational requirement for the land. 

 

3. Conclusion and reasons for recommendations  

3.1 It is recommended that approval be given to complete the acquisition of the land shown edged red 
on the plan (appendix 1).   

3.2   It is recommended that approval be given to complete the disposal of the land shown edged red on 
the plan (appendix 1). 

3.2  It is recommended that authority be delegated to the Chief Operating Officer to agree the terms of 
the acquisition on the best terms reasonably achievable in accordance with S120 of the Local Government 
Act 1972 and subsequent disposal in accordance with S 123 of the same act. 

 

 

 Page 13

Agenda Item 6



KEVIN FOSTER    
Chief Operating Officer     

Contact Officer: Zoe Tweed 
Tel. No 01273 336104 

Email: zoe.tweed@eastsussex.gov.uk 

 

LOCAL MEMBERS 

Councillor Peter Pragnell 

Councillor John Hodges 

 

Background Documents: None 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



 

P
age 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
Report to:  Lead Member for Resources    
 
Date:   24 November 2015 
 
By:   Chief Operating Officer    
 
Title of report:  1 Garfield Road, Hailsham  
 

Purpose of report: To seek Lead Member approval to declare this property surplus to Council 

requirements  

 
RECOMMENDATION:   The Lead Member is recommended to: 
 
(1) declare the property surplus to Council operational requirements; and 
(2) delegate authority to the Chief Operating Officer to agree the terms in line with s. 123 of the 

Local Government Act 1972. 
 

 

1. Background Information 

1.1 Declaring this property surplus to the Council’s requirements will enable the Chief Operating Officer 
to achieve best consideration. 

1.2 The detached property consists of 3 bedrooms with a family bathroom, internal storage room, two 
reception rooms and kitchen/diner. The property further consists of rear garden, garage and workshop. 

1.3  The property has been let to a long term residential tenant. When the original tenant passed away 
the tenancy was succeeded by their son. Now that he has passed away there are no further rights to 
succession. A plan of the property is attached in Appendix 1. 

1.4 There is currently no financial income. 

 

2.   Supporting information 

2.1     The site is shown hatched black on the attached plan at Appendix 1 and comprises 0.085 acres. 
 
2.2      An internal consultation with all Council Services has concluded there is no operational requirement 
for this property. 
 
2.3       As the property is not an open space the Section 123 requirement to advertise in a local 
newspaper for a 2 week period does not apply. 
 
2.4       The Local Members have been informed and have no objections to disposing of this property. 
 

3. Conclusion and reasons for recommendations  

3.1 The property has no future use or benefit for the Council.  

3.2 It is recommended that this property be declared surplus to County Council requirements and terms 
for any disposal delegated to the Chief Operating Officer in accordance with the requirements of Section 
123 of the Local Government Act 1972. 

KEVIN FOSTER    
Chief Operating Officer     

Contact Officer: Kate Nicholson, Assistant Estates Surveyor 
Tel. No. 01273 336 487 
Email: kate.nicholson@eastsussex.gov.uk 

Local Members: Councillor Bill Bentley & Councillor Laurence Keeley    
              
             

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



Appendix 1  

Plan of 1 Garfield Road, BN27 2BD 

 

 

Page 18


	Agenda
	1 Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 20 October 2015
	4 Notice of Motion:  Opposition to the Trade Union Bill ('the Bill')
	5 Mount Denys and Pinehill. The Ridge, Hastings
	LMR 241115 Mount Denys and Pinehill Location Plan

	6 Acquisition and disposal of land at Sandrock Hall Bends, The Ridge, Hastings
	7 1 Garfield Road, Hailsham

